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Sixty^nineetoa--a11 3t n°rmal speed and a11 that. 

A Sixty-nine and seventy, right. 
Q And that was special assistant — 
A N°' just assistant to the dirprtnr. 

per se/buryorhad0--^^^ ̂  mana^einent responsibilities 

A I had management responsibilities and that was to ^ 

^goTthat job9 /was twenty-nine vears old 1 

W hejjgdj^o,^ 
^-aaybodi^to^dojhat, anaT^ouTTTe-17^ Aeon I I !. 

• "" some^:Lm^g. and it Decame a real hasslT for them They 
rnnh'l fi,f We.need somebody to take care of HehmrTiSiJi* Z.sl W-
tiiie. Thiy1"^?,, to _32.__get_anothing at any to U*dU 

careSof"ll s°mebody wh° ca" travel with him continuMsTv and tJT„ 

— —- - ~ 5S ffirss tstzsz?** 
-ECTTo the key nanaqer^ atif^han ."3"^°™ 
that made than nervous, bSSSSTTT^t of times he travel 9 

^ W- °» ">•>«**»* else and they didn°t€ 

•5ie administrator Lf^rtKftT 5̂1-^'t<Jld T°° 
Was that before or after Apollo 11? 

A Ib "as right after Anollo n So,'anyway, von Braun - it 
lot his Idea; it was th« u-„ .raun lt: was not his idea; it was' the i&f h' ™ BraU" " : 

needed an ; .1 ...T 1 f • lnnpr niT~cIe that _h» 
t^lirner"bout ?t InflTl "f* ̂  
process and yon pich out who^ou'tS'w^d^he^ight'type 
.and then he would intPruiow f^r fnn +-hl-nn T1 , . ? type, 

-ey narrowed it 

(CcriW) 
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to interview the three people. Call it a stroke of luck or 
misfortune, however you want to look at it, but I was the first 
one to interview with him and he hired me on""the spot. He said 
he didn't need to interview anybody else, he wanted me. Here I 
was a young man, 29 years old, had come right out of a technical 
job in the test laboratory where I was a test conductor on the 
Sl-16. That was one of the requirements. This person had to, 
have a technical background. He wanted it to be a young person 
*~wHo could get some advantage out of it. He didn't just want 
somebody to be a service to him, he wanted it to be an experience 
and an opportunity where this person would get to meet people and 
make a lot of contacts and further his career. It was to be a 
one- to two-year assignment, no longer than that. So, that's how 
I got the job. You might say that I was on the road all the time 
with him. 
Q And your background is? You are a degreed engineer? 
A Yes. Right. I am a degreed enainopr -hhp University of 
Evansville back in 1963_^ Right out of school, I came to work at 
NASA. I had been in the laDoratory for alpout six vea^s: I 
"Worked for Carl Heijiberq, who was the Test Lab director. Carl 
Heinberg is the one that put my name in the pot. 
(Unintelligible) I started off as a propulsion systems engineer 
and worked on the F-l engine, which basically was the propulsion 
system for the S-l stage which had the ~5^-l engine": 
test stand where I got all the F-l engine experience, 
moved in to become test conductor on the Sl-C stand. 

From that 
then I 

Did they call for volunteers? 
No. 
A selection by the lab chiefs? 
Right. There was no voluntary-type of factor. The fact is 

Q 
A 
Q 
A 
I did this because I thought it was my duty and because of my 
great respect for my leader, Carl Heinberg. He wanted me to do 
this, so I did not feel like I could say no; because when 
Mr. Heinberg explained all of it to me, I told him I really 
didn't want to do it. He said, "Tom, you must do this. You 
absolutely must do this. This is an opportunity." 
4Unintolllgible)• "You can come back, and you will always have a 
job with me." That was a pretty good endorsement. saia, 
"Well, Mr. Heimberg, you are my boss, and if you fe^ll me to do 
this, I will do it." I think I told that to voiy Braun. He asked 

said. "T rPr>"13,? didn' t want -1hi r 
me I should take 

me why I wanted that iobf apcj I 
_iob- but Carl Heijuberg is my boss and 
it." 1 01 UUUtse, j. was in total awe of 
to have the interview, 
Q What did he say he was looking f 

d he tolyi 
of him^ 

• 

jrtien I went up there 

or.' 
A Well, he told me it was not his idea, that it was the idea 
of these other people because they got tired of putting up with 
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him and all the trouble he caused. So, he said that we would 
kind of learn together. here. 
Q —(Unintolligible) 
A He put me at e_aae. the first time I met him. I was totally 
geared to death when I went up to his office for the interview, 
and I held him in such awe because I had always heard about him 
^and read about him when "T""was in "school Dr. vorT Braun and the 
German rocket team are going to go to the moon and land on the 
moon and all that. 
Q I guess you had been around — 
A Well, I had been around him from being the static fire test 
director. He had been to all of our static fires. He was not 
allowed in the control room, though; he was behind a glassed 
area. So, we were kind of like monkeys in a cage. He could look 
through the glass and he could see the test conductor and all of 
the people sitting at the consoles and all that, and he would 
wear a headset and he could hear the countdown and what was 
happening, but he did not come in the control room and mingle 
with the static fire test people. After we would have a 
successful static firing, wop] d always be a post-firing 

(ft party somewhere, and Dr. von Braun always came to the" "partyHe 
MS*? would come around and congratulate people and s"oT He did thaT~ 

type of thing. He would shake our hands aricTthis and that. It 
was very small talk.. I had never interfaced with him in terms of 
conducting business or^whatever, but I had seen him and I had 
spoken-to FTfmT"but never interfaced with him on any business 
matters. I was too low in the organization and too young to do 
that. 
Q I imagine that right there after Apollo 11, for that period 
you were with him, those were really busy years with a tremendous 
demand, publicly, I mean, but also as the landing missions went 
on. 
A I think on one of my very first trips or very early, I went 
t o work for him just right about the time or inst withip A WPPIC 

V after the first lunar landing took place.I met Neil Armstrong 
up in MASA neaaquarters, and, of course. I was in awe of him too, 
the first man that walked on the moon. The occasion was 
"Br. von Braun had a meeting with Tom Paine, who was the 
administrator at the time, and he was in Tom Paine's office. I 
had been off to another office to arrange transportation or 
picking up something or scheduling something or whatever; so, I 
was to meet Dr. von Braun at a certain time after Dr. Paine's 

\ office. I came up there in the waiting area outside of his 
, office and there is this gentleman sitting there all by himself. 
There wasn't another^sola^there. and I sat down and picked up 

Y magazine and looked around, and, my gosh, if it wasn't Neil 

//• 
v Jt/ Armstrong. He had just landed, and he was there to have 

Lit j /fa 
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meeting with Tom Paine and Albright. He was all by himself. 
I was so nervous that I didn/t know what to say to him, like, how 
was it on the moon or anything. 
Q When you say "landed," you mean landed on earth? 
A Yes, he returned. He had just returned? Like ~I say, it was 
very shortly after the ]rm^ng™6h~~Ehe moon. He had just come 
back, and I think this was his first meeting with Tom Paine since 
he returned from the moon. 
Q So, you didn't really strike up a conversation? 

I am afraid it was small talk with him. You know, how's he 
feeling, how's he doing, and things like that. I was concerned 
about his health. It was just small talk about how big""The 
agency was and how that mission was really going to lay the 
ground work for the next one. Here we had another one coming up 
in three or four weeks or whatever. They were only about six 
weeks apart, so the agency was reallvT really busy. 
Q What a way to start out. Paine and von Braun had a pretty 
.good relationship, didn't t.hpv? 
A They had a very good relationship. They were kindred 
spirits." They were on a level by themselves and nobody else was 
at mar level with them. I don't need to tell you This, but 
Dr. von Braun was truly a genius. . I have never known anyone that 
had his mental factors and his intelligence. Some things that 
people might not know is that>fcfie man had brilliance, * ITFi.l ..ill 
all his mental capacity, he was also a great human being. He was 
a warm, friendly, gregarious, outgoing-type of person, not the 
type of person you would expect at his responsibility and 
accomplishing the great things that he did. The movies that I 
have seen about von Braun have never captured the essence of the 
man. He always comes across as the gruff, dictatorial, pure 
German^type, you know, and he wasn't that way at alTT A lot of 
them were, but he wasn't. ~" * " 

I have a fair amount of material that goes to that point of 
what a true, warm, caring human being he was despite his 
wonderful stature. 
A His treatment of me was exceptional, and he included me in 
everytllilig# and he was concerned about me. He worried" about me. 

old him to forget about me and don't even be concerned about 
me^but every time we would go anywhere — and I would try to 
fadeTnto the wallpaper like a wallflower and slip off and do 
what I had to do and try to make a phone call or trv to check on 
some status because we were running behind and try to get 
somebody's heads up that we were running late and would be there 
at this time or that — he would always stick his head up in a 
crowd and be looking around for me. He would soot me and say, 
•  • m  m  ,  _ _  -  .  —  '.'Tom, Tom, come here. Come here." He would say, "Let me 
introduce you to my good friend," and this and that. With 

(c&wfrf') 
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Richard Nixon, one time, he did that, and he calls me up there 
out of a crowd and introduces me to Richard Nixon, the President 
at the time. He would do those sort of things 7~alwavs. Wherever 
we went — we would go to Houston. He would make sure that I met 
alT"the asrrgnauts". We would go down in the training facilities, 
and he would make sure that I got to fly in the simulator with 
the astronauts. He wanted me to participate in everything that 
he could do in this program.He wouDd bring mp into very, very 
private meetings that nobody else was allowed to come into. I 
would be the only other person from"Marsha11 Space Flight Center, 
because he could only bring one pergflfl 5M he would bring me. 

'y Absolute trust and — 
A Right. Eberhart ReAs, who was his deputy, would be there 
with him, but he wouldn't get to go in the meetings because 
von Braun could only bring one person. He would always choose me 
to go into the meetings with him. Like I say, he made sure I 
participated in everything. 
Q He did see this as grooming you for the future, too — 
A Yes, absolutely. That's why he wanted — 
Q — for your value to the agency later. 
A He wanted me to make contacts. He wanted me to meet people. 
He wanted me to experience all the aspects of the agency and what 
it was all about. 
Q That's remarkable. Do you remember any other specific 
examples of his making sure you — ^ . 
A Oh, yes. Now, if you want to talk about some humorous 
things, the funny things, he would~always be concerned — 1ike, 
if he had an entourage, there would be a lot of people — if we 
were going somewhere, 3j.ke down to the Cape, they would pick us 
up at the air strip and take us to the headquarters building, 
there would be a van there or a little bus for 10 or 12 or us or 
whatever. He would duajt—be^JLike a "shepherd with his flock and 
would Be looking for everybody and he doesn't see me and 
everybody else is on the bus; he would get off the bus and comes 
back in and comes into the men's room and knocking on t-.hp stalls 
saying, "Tom, Tom, are you in here?" He would be looking for me 
and he would come find me. I can assure you — 
Q Was that where you were? 
A Yes. I was in a phone book making a call. I knew it would 
be a long time before I would get another chance, so I just 
dropped right off in the men's room to make a pit stop before we 
went. _He was very resourceful. He didn't have to worry about 
me, because even if I missed the bus, I could get a ride or call 
_a taxi or whatever. He was always concerned about me and others 
Q What piqued your interest in NASA in the first place when 
you got out of college? 
A Well, I didn't have that much interest in terms of me 
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1 
becoming a part of that, I didn't think. I was going to take the 
traditional engineering job locally and end up being a plant 
manager of a tire plant or something. There was a lot of 
industrial-type companies there where they hired mechanical 
engineers and all that, but there was a co-op student in my 
class, and he co-oped down at NASA. He was really high on the 
program, and he told a lot of us, "You need to come down and see 
what they are doing. They are really serious about going to the 
moon." I thought it would be something way down the road or that 
they would play around with it and it would never pan out. I 
didn't really think it was that reliable a type of job. I said, 
well, I had better get something safer; they will play around 
with that for a few years and then the program will be cancelled 
and I won't have a job. (Unintelligible) 
Q In '63 that thing was (Unintelligible), wasn't it? 
A Well, it was. Still, t-hor-o t.tqt~Qn/+- a uhnip int of people in 
the country that believed we were really going to go to the mooh. 
We were very busy and we all knew it. Many times people would 
make the comment, you guys really believe you are going to do 
this, don't you? They didn't really believe themselves, but they 
believed that we believed it. Anyway, I came down on spring 
break, and I went around and interviewed some people at NASA and 
went into the test lab and got to witness a static firing on a 
Saturn 1 stage. I was on top of tije block house right out in the 
open. When that rocket stage lit^up, it just vibrated the 
place — and the sound. It was just overwhelming. I was so 
excited about that. I said, "Wow! I want to work on these 
rockets." Anyway, I didn't really want to go to design lab and 
work on the drawing board and all. I wanted to be out there 
working on the hardware and doing all the tests and helping 
develop those (Unintelligible). I came right into th^ lah 
right out of school. I got a job offer on the spot and I took it 
on the spot. 
Q So, when you came down for spring break — 
A Right. They offered me a job. I said, "Sure, I will come." 
We didn't talk about pay or money or anything, which was 
pathetically low at the time. Private industry was paying so 
much more. Of course, I didn't know a lot about finances at that 
time. I was just a poor college student and didn't require much 
money except to buy books. As it turned out, there was a 
tremendous difference in salary, but had it not been for the 
overtime, I could not have made it, it was so pathetically low. 
Q I didn't realize the pay then for starting engineers — 
A T came to work as a GS7 engineer and the pay was $6650. 
Typically, the job offers out of school were going on $10,000 or 
12,000 and that type of thing. So it was 6650 versus 12,000, and 
that's a big difference. I thought that I would go work hard and 
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I could make it because I was going to be working a lot of 
overtime. At tnat pay rate, you would get overtime. The 
"lower-level engineers got overtime. 
Q I recently heard that Dr. von Braun was only making a little 
more than 30,000 when Apollo 11 — 
A That's about right. He was not a wealthy man. I think it 
was fortunate that he had that time from Fairchild-Hiller as 
vice-president (Unintelligible). 
Q They thought that that was probably around 250,000 for 
(Unintelligible) at Fairchild. 
A Yes. (Jh£ 
Q I interviewed Ed fiuwol^ the CEO at Fairchild at that time, 
and he (Unintelligible). I should have asked him what von Braun 
made, but I didn't. 
A It was a tremendous leap in faith. Money was never very 
important to him as long as he was doing what he wanted to do. 
He 1 iked to live the high life, but he could also eat at Burger 
King or fast food or whatever. He wasn't that picky. It 
depended on what the schedule was. 
0 
A 
Q 
A 
Q 
A 

But he did enjoy the finer things, didn't he? 
Jure. Oh f yes, 

~ Considering his upbringing, too? 
Right. 
Nice furniture and a restaurant with violins? 
Right. You can't do things today like you could do back 

then with the contractors. They can't lavish you with a lot of 
these things and amenities that he was accustomed to with the 
contractors. £,MJbuJit 
XT Tell me some of the other humorous^or surprises 

en you traveled with him. 
that 

er one, like I said, he was a very outgoing, 
gregarious guv. had an insatiable thirst for knowledge on any 
subject; it wasn't "folate space travel. So, you need to understand 

He liked to know everything that he was that type"of person, 
about everything. 
g i have a whole chapter that is going to be titled something 
to do with the Renaissance man./ His interests were so broad. f\ 
A In terms of •(•Unintelligible^ — it wasn't funny to me at the 
time, but when I think back on it, it was. He was a night 
person, and he was notorious for not starting early meetings 
getting Tip 55riy. br course, when we would go to headguarters, 
you are already on the Eastern^ime there, so you lose the hour 

. thprp. You must be in these meetings if you are scheduled to 
go before a Congressional subcommittee hearing at 9 o'clock, you 
"had better be there. You have,to be there, so, I would call 

m --_we would agppp i-hg niaht before. "Okay, we are going to 
meet for breakfast downstairs. We will meet there at 8 o'clock." 

or 

U 
m 

( Co-vt'J 

* 

••Jj 
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This happened all 
I would call his room, and he 

I will be right down." 

Eight o'clock would come at 
le time. He was notorious. 

would say, "Good morning. I'm not dead.. ^ 
He woulcT~hang UP the phone and go right back to sleep again 
jwould have^o go up and beat on his door and then he would 
answer. He would say, "Yes, yes. I will be right down." I 
would make him walk to the door and then he would open the door. 
He wouTcTbe"there TnHiis shorts riaht'out of" bed. He hadnit 
taken a shower? hp hadn't Rhavpd.He lied to me all the time. 
hp would tell me he was shaving and he r1icfht- there, but 
he would go""right back to sleep just as soon as I would leave him 
alone. So I learned not to trust Dr. von Braun when he would say 
"he was up! T would go beat "on his door- in theT morning and make 
hiriTopen that door^and let me in hTs~room, and I would nag him to 

r "it didn't take too long to learn that. 
A No.^aThat was one of my jobs:to make sure that he got 

• ^TT. ^ /N/«-S r«4> . I 

there 
CTTni ntinlliwibla)- ̂ a on time. 'He was a master psychologist 

politicTan. He never tried to appeal to the masses like a 
politician^ would. He knew who the important people were, so he k/V/XX .. . J—— 

was "an expert at manipulating people to"get them to do what he 
wanted them to do without being domineering. He was always 
•BTaTf-ing l ikp it was vour idea and not his. He was real good at 
thatT Many times he"knew the answers to his dilemma or problems, 
but lie wanted you to come to the conclusion and offer the 
snintiop*! There would t>e.a lot of funny things about that. One 

i -i . j_i_j j_i j_ u ^ j m am ̂  mr »»t 4- -J r« V*» q t«7 o e of the things that he' me in one day about is he was 
His concern was ^-getting ready for the meetings at headguarters 

( lie had this Mercedes that he dearly loved"! It was about a year 
old, and he just worshiped "that car! He didn't want a scratch on 
it"or anything. His dilemma was that he didn'tTcnow how he was" 
going to get~that car to Washington. frTJni nital 1 i gi hla) THTa WQ 
'not , rU rnn-inrtible > it was a oodan.- He considered having the 
things shipped by rail car. He considered hiring a driver to 
take it for him. He could not do it because of his schedule, and 
he had to get there at a certain time. He had a very demanding 
schedule, and he couldn't affordlto take the two days or whatever 
to do it. He asked me, "What^Shaul^ I do with my car?" I said, 
"Dr. von Braun, do you want me to drive your damn car to 
Washington for you?" He said, "Would you do that? Would you be 
so kind?" S»I drove his Mercedes to Washington for him" I went 
over and 'got the Mercedes an afternoon before I left. I remember 
bringing it home and parking it inside my garage, you know, and 
showing it to my kids and wife and taking pictures of it. "Here 
is Dr. von Braun's beloved Mercedes^in my garage/" 
Q X bet you guarded it with your life. X ̂ 
A Oh, all night. Thoro wao a little downer on it^ because 

/UVK 
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11 I lifcjf.fc!a he asked me how I liked driving that Mercedes. 

How did I like the Mercedes? Of course. I told him, "I would 
really rather have a Buick." That was the slogan back then. I 
don't know if you remember that. All the advertisements said, "I 
would really rather have a Buick." I told him that is what I 
drove and I would really rather have a Buick. 
Q What was his reaction? 
A I kind of felt that way because the Mercedes had a real 
tight steering on it and you had to steer it all the time. I 
said I was sure glad the big, old U.S. luxury cars — driving 
that was like driving a sports car. You had a/gharp turning ' 
radius and had to really keep it on the road all the time. v 
Q Which is probably what he liked. . 
A Yes. And it had a very tight, hard ( • U n i n t o l l i g i b l e I t  
didn't have that nice, soft touch, but it was a performance car. 
So I understand that. It is kind of like a Corvette; they are 
made for high speeds.( T~alwa^ 

l-cardsyyloti mo tell yoin frhnt • 
'credit cards, and I took care of checking us in and checking us 
out of hotels. I paid the restaurant bills for our dinners and 
>TT that. I always had his credit cards. I would give the ___ 

,y credit card. I told him,toiMrt% "I can't use your credit cards/* U. ̂  (Uph+f. 
& the time* I did" t'frat, nobody""11 ' "" 

s (Unintelligible).) his credit 
•Wo fcriod thomi I carried his 

~" So, in all ( 
I would give them the credit card that said 

just sign your name 
ever questioned it. 
"Wehrner von Braun, " and £Herr"l"<w.Quld" sign ^homaiTTT~Sh after, " 
and nobody ever questioned it.^ When I went to Washington with 

$ credit card, and nobody ever questioned me on that 
\ ,fhe never carried cashT^ He never had money. So I would always 

fo' Hfr have to carry the casfi. <Maria, his wife, and I would get 
together, and Bonnie and Maria and 1 would Sort everything out 

Jjpf w"hen we got back home"! Bonnie was his secretary. So I would, 
(/*/ sort everything out, and I woulfl^ell Maria, "Okay, Maria 

owes me so much —" you know>A,lShe always settled up.\^He 
.wouldn't even brinq?(TTni ntnlligiblo) - She wouldn't even know 

stoppand b % as, wo or three times^and use his 
Of course, 

where he stayed or-what the amount was or anything, so I would 
always give Maria the receipts from the credit cards for the 
hotel bill and all that. She was the bookkeeper, the accountant, 
the banker, and all that. ' " g 
Q(U n i n t e l l i g i b l e )  o r  a n y b o d y  w a s  g o i n g  t o  b e  t i p p e d ,  h e  w o u l d  
have to do it. He didn't carry any money with him anyway. 
A They were so happy to have me — Bonnie and Maria. I have 
talked with both of them, and they are~the ones that told me, 
'̂Take care of him and we will settle up when vou get home. Don't 
you worry about it." So I had open«\(I could"" 

y nwr) airplane ticket anytime ll wanted,and I had open 

(AJWj, 

I JH _ ^ 
/ advances on travel allowances. /l could "just go to gravel and 

tew (<***•) 
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get $500 or $10(?0_aE-Jgtiat.e.verA mid limn «n T -j„C,+-
file vouchersfwhen we got backt but I didn't have to go get 
travel orders to go anywhere. "" " 
Q (Unintelligible)-
ft J**-' travel—xaquss£> I could just sign my ticket anywhere I 
wanteH to go. Money was no problem^ I just had to keep up with 
it. 

How many days would you say on the average during the month 
or whatever you were on the road? 
A During that period, I would say at least two-thirds of the bu&b¥&$' 
time4-a^fc maybe three-fourths of the_ time, if "not more than tha£PT 
pere would be times we would"be gone two weeks at a stretch. 
^ni gihlr •< hnr l'j ITII n ni nnj n- i nrrniiijriijJ 

gave 
He^would mix business with pleasure^ 
a lot of speeches back then, and he got paic :or lem. 
give*r $5000 as an honorarium or whatever, "and he had 

maximum limit on how much he,u50tricr~coTiect per yeaj^. 
smart enough that he worked the system and all that. ~H€T woul< 
work"all these thingr A If he hftdVpi trip somewhere on business 

have to 
Whereas, 

whereas, mess, he could fiv'the NASA Gulf Stream. 
There was nothing wrong with th^t. HP never made trip^withgwb' 

was 
Q 
A 

~THe always went where he was told to"go when he 
told to do it. V°P jtsf-An, ef Sewcvy/ou_. 
He didn't have a lot of personal choice? ̂  uf> irifs < 
He had every choice, but what I am saying is,there were so 

h] many demands on his time, that there would be ten times more than 
he could do in a day. ~He ̂ 5ul3~make the selection on "what was 
the most important. In reality, he didn't have a whniP lot nf 
personal choice,because the demands on his time were so great. 
Q From others I have gathered that ̂(•UjiinLnllig i bii.li j uwiu -
intent on maximizing his time — 
A Absolutely. 

Unintelligible! — ̂ hnf (Vf 
enjoyment — 
jr—' There was no distinction 
.fonndTit? a11l-ae^iVe" en3"T 

M«UJI±11LU111L^ 
k A# lUtSjtlS t 

gible^ business or personal 

*fUnmtolligible) with ull the' dinners 

•fr*V-eW 10/4 >fux. 
kept going. I alwaysA /•. :— 

Uninttlliy ilile^-—Again, 
would ao to. that jusf 

He justkept going. 

before Dr. von Braun would get UP and give a speech, he always ~tL*L{*W" 
felt like he had to introduce me to the audience. There might be @ 
5000 people sitting out there, mil nil il i« dinner,' and I didn't 
like him to do that.It embarrassed me^ - - • - -• " 1 lot of times he weald cr^. 

spotlight on me and I/would have to stand up. I would 
that. Please don't , • come back and say, "Dr. von^ Braun. don't do" 

5k-yK*. bt 

kid k*ve 
10 (cu*) fcr.« 

-«F 



(Of*^ 
•) / 6th**. 

do that, •*j*btiitsti a ^ The more I protested, the more he would^™*-^-—— —^ 
the next time.. When he would get done with his introduction, if 
he were the most important man in the agency, then I was the 
second most ynportant man in the agency. oTTTISBwlwlfjfauF"^ . 

That's the way he would introduce me. J 

second most ^po.r t^a n t jn 
he Wouldn't &A anything 
He would embellish it 
more .He"'wouTd"-=. 

like I say, and the I complained,^the 
Tin n«jli;l roall^^get a kic 

"*tKrT~ 
t of it. - — — ~ ^ J.„. He loved 

to embarrass me. He goF a t5ig xhrlll out or embarrassing meT* i , 
The more he could embarrass me. the" better he liked it. you Rno 

I don't know if you want to put this in the book or not 
will just tell you. It's a little off-side "^Tthin^J: 
Everywhere we went, they always had a hospitality room set up for 
him in some fancy hotel somewhere even though we weren't spending 
the night. It was just some place for him to crash for a little 

» and get "some rest, freshen up, or whatever. There was never a 
time when we went to these hospitality rooms where they didn't 
Have a real nice liq J-*-- • — - -

? kourbon, scotch, gin 
the loot befor 

have a real nice liquor set-up there in the bar. They would have, 
____ everything. 

before we would leave, 
Part of my job was to Q&Hm.Hfi 
We would always split" it. 

< So he felt like it was his, you know. That was part of thP d^l. 
He would always share it with me,-wha±sggg; fTTni n*-nl 1 i rjihln) *>A\j 
•Getting iun un We would split the loo'fc. A 

IoImJ-do uo,. Q Especially a guy living on government wages, 
A Tt would be likei5 o'clock or/whatever and he just gave a y, 

e would come/ over and we would have to ^7^ . -
ke in 15 minutes. We got the loot as we 

Philadelphia or wherever that 
u check the room?" I would 

Stream on to 
"Tom, did yc 
car ready tc 

speech or whatever, 
leave very shortly, 
were taking the Gulf 
night. He would say, 
say, "It's all in thq 
if I checked the rooi 
Q Some of his spe« ch writers haye 
many occasions would 
helped write (Uninte] 
it, and more often tl 

go." He always wanted to know 

told me that he had on so 
be the good giiy for an article that they had 
ligible) then he would put his own touch to 
an not, he world (Unintelligible).-- Orv(uj*u 

A Right. I know collaboratec with Art Williame^and others 
cs, and that type of thing. Speech 
like his speech writers, I can tell you 
any of the meterial they prepared for him, 
en use it unless he was extremely tired, and 

/our ox. 

text — 

on some articles, boc 
writers — he didn't 
that. He didn't likr 
ever. He wouldn't e^ c 
he would just ad lib {everything. 
Q Someone told me Hafe reworked ttf/e 
A Oh, yesQ y 
dty C u On speeches,he didn't use a prepared text. He 
didn't use prepared text at NASA headquarters. You know all 
about the geographies and all that. He would make his speech 
without., a without words. He never used any word 
charts. VHIS presentations consisted of photographs. He would 

•LU~U"T Live] n 
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— W-Vf 
have pictures. He would have a picture of a firing. He would 
have a picture of a space craft. He would have pictures of the 
astronauts in zero-G, but he didn't1 have writtfih Wbrds on charts. 
He did all that right "out of "his head." '"'That made everybody so 
nervous", because they never knew what he was going to savT He" 
was unpredictable. He would not confide in them what he was 

V 5oing to say, and a lot ofTimes he didn't make up his mind until 
right before his presentation, yon Braun, if it were something 
really, really lmportant^aye the"presentatlons himself.—Hi— 
never let Eberhardt Re£s or Bill Lucas or any of those "type of 
people when you are trying to develop a new program and you 
are trying to carve out an assignment for the Marshall Space 
Flight Center and you are trying to develop a strategy on how you 
are going to go to Mars or this or that, he would never trust 
anybody else to present that. He would do that himself. in fact 
he would do it by speaking, but you had better have your tape 
recorder, because you are not going to have a lot of handouts 
with all the printed words. You had better listen to every word 
the man says, because he had it all up there, and he had it all 
laid out and planned and all that. His presentations were 
nothing more than photographs and that type of thing. He gave 
all his speeches right off the top of his head. His great' 
speecnes were off the top of his head. He would take something 
and Public Affairs would take credit for"*Tt and hie'would lav it-
aside,. He would react to the crowd and the audience. Also, that 

«• was another one of my jobs. He always wanted to know how did it 
cjo, how clid he do, how was this and how was that? He was " " 
childlike in some ways, because I could hurt his feelings, and I 

had hurt his feelings, but I would rather be honesfr 
with him.So when it didn't go over well, I would sav. "Don't 
make mention of that any more. That didn't go nvpr wpII. i 
heard some groans in the audience when you said that." He~"wanted 
me to be very candid and honest with him, but I could tell~"when ~I 
wasn't lust giving praise that I had hurt his feelings a little 
j?1*-» He told meJae wanted me to really talk straight to him. He 
never, ever wanted to hurt anyone else's feelings. He was very 
sensitive to thatT JHe was very, very sensitive. He never" 
Publicly or privately embarrass anybody or ever chew them out for 
anything._ Luce i say, he was a master psychologist where he 
would bring them around to his way of thinking, where they 
thought it was tneir idea." He would get frustrated sometimes, 

) because he would have some pretty hard heads out there sometimes. 
Like I say, he never embarrassed someone or criticized someone. 
Now, he would come back and be so mad and say, "That damn, so and 
so." He would get frustrated with me because he knew it wouldn't 
go any further than me. 
Q I gather on occasion when — not necessarily heads had to 
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with him and telPihim we had to leave, you know, and I would cut 
off the reporterSj\^> other people getting autographs or whatever, 
"He would say. "Oh. no, Tom, just give me five more minutes." And 
JT would say, "No, we have got to go right now." He was always"""""" 
like he didn/t want to,-» nnl T"i*i n^.the bad guy> tic would I 

CPYSI£'VX Qoi  am so sorrv." 
_ (2 D 

dinner 
f  A oh  
Dr. Wehrner von Braun, you know who he was, because there were 
pictures on Time maga*^ in thrt-aaMs-jamdia) and his 
photograph was in the new^mnpr. 4nd he"" was a good-looking man. 
He had a very large head and very recognizable features. He had 
stroncf, visual features, so he was very recoani 7ahi^. Everywhere 
youggo, people would ̂ yantliis autograph We could not go into a 
restaurant 1ike people. He would pick the restaurant where 
he wanted to go. and everybody would yu Llndiu ̂  I would get 
reservations. Then we would go to the restaurant, and he would 
either hang out in the car or he wouldhang out beside the 

n A 
building. I would go in and get -3- - 7" v&t) /> A a table/ and then I 

ask the waiters^iii jfhoy haift a siae entrance where I can 
in this party that'«^ with me tonight? I fifthfd» *t brin 

would 
bring 
him in the front door/wfUriTbe too recognizable." Then I 
would got sensed go out the side door and bring him in from 
the a 1 lev nr uhot-owor. ana ,n-iVr. •*• .• i rti ~ i-.~ i—. _ j . 

ffiftifdw «t bring 

the alley or wherever>. and wepimJ 
the testauBu^ri? hify&oay recognized him, ^h~-~H-fnnlf br 

be back in a dark corner in 
XL^jV w J--1" "-"'J icwyiiiicu I1XILI, LIieytA De 

over^mrjwanting his autograph. & ̂any times I would bring him in 
through ̂  side doorc^r irnmrntrhi^Jfr like that. 
Q If somebody came over to his table esa^fthought they 
recognized him and approached him, would he acknowledge who he 
was? . 
A Oh, yes. Nobody ever acted like they didn't^^wSPujfc 
j. They^always knew who he was,ancffi^uld come up 

ancT^"'Dr. von Braun, I*<#m so happy to see you .jt He was always 
ula always give 

\ 

very cordial with him and all that, and he woulu aiways give g 
autographs, Hn nmrnr tried Lu dmj Lliu^t. <tlutUfS. fa Wjen j ' 
Q One fellow, a former NASA employee, told me a little story 
about (Interruption — background noise increases) 

"~A ^>We had to mgke a nl ane nnnnpnHnn. Tt was extrsmplv 
/ important that we make that connection. We were runnina late 
There was no way we could gat (Unintelligible >.(and make that^ 
Diane connection: 1 had'lafked to thelayline^representative and 

important this wasjfthat w^jgef on that plane..So We 
5 " "that Jiaul the 

RY* 

plane connection. 
told him how 
commandeered one of those,.litt).e\ four-wKeeT" 
luggage. i" ffraBbed him and said,\ ̂ Dr? von Braun,\we hulll. 
ride.• We went out the side door\thereby ThnrTntAnir A in jride."* We went out the side door\thereTv They ot\ 
baclybf this cart, and iru. ulii^ sitting thffte holdJ — •• MI i u.— .. Ja.a«=3——,  ,  „  _  \  .if 

0 TLl X 
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14 U cl l u / ,  rw 



<nv; 

/ y w u t 0 * #  / 7^ Sht**-&n̂  
/ŷ yyû U &v 

lTiggirjnm ghat dViver was driving that thing as fast as he could Qd, Ot<f 
•b'J "'"t wa warn Tikif hinging nn r- Thn pi -ann -=+• +h~ 

ra, 

tmuy * 
s° we went\out there and got on thai- planagg^ ̂4* 

.ffjgintolligibla) on gia^cart thp£ £^lsJ»Uuggage^ 
1tfftf/r? (TTnintallaqUlu) Prjj t̂fwSs fitting on toCToldinq on for 
dear life./ funini--^ 1 ; -;'-1 ^—1,** i.Ivl 

P 

, J # Y , A IMMP-
dear life. / (•Unintelligible) .Whatever it took', 

You were married and had childFg 
do it 

A Right. (Conversation) 
the time, and I swear^y"didn;t — hr 
years old, because "i was gone so much 
and w"ant"to pick~her up and hold her. 

I had just had my second daughter at 
until she was about two * 

T* would come""Some U'nen 
id of course 

11 that. stranger so she would cry and scream anuxa-ix cnac. 1 
unload andffi.oad a suitcase an5"~be gone agaiTK^ (UniivFe 
.She d 1 dri ' t "lfnnu uhn T t.iao ^ ~ j .. _tTrr^—_ _i 

was 

J t She didn't know .vjhQ -I-Mas.,until she was two years old. 
_Q Who were some of the other VIPs or celebrities that vou met 

I in the course of your travels with himT * • 
\ A Nixon and Dr. DeBakey. Von Braurr was not a big politician 
| in terms of trying to inn! never had any 

great ideas for dealing on a global scale for helping humanity 
that way, but one-on-one, he would do anything for anybody that 

i he ever could. He was always wanting to help anybody one-on-one. 
(End of tape. Conversation picks up mid-statement) > 

lond-ranqe plan for NASA. He wanted to.-be a jproper 
be a one-shot ^ 

j>t8 

% 

(TTm ntalligibla) »• He didn't want it to iust 
like going to the moon and that's it. Hg told wphrn^r 
was nobody in the agency that could do this kind of planning 
except: him. He was the only man that had ihab ^oresjrrht-
imagination, and all that/that could put together a totally 
integrated space program for the next 20 yearsT It "had a"lot of 
elements to lrjr ^•^^.not just landing on the moon or going to 
Mars or whatevel. lb' encompassed everything: a new stable of 
launch vehicles, earEh orbiters, space station#, a permanent base 
on the moon, Mars landing, {gil all thatya very comprehensive 
space program for the next 26 years. Tney had a close personal 
relationship^andltremendous respect fof~__£ar:h nthgj^ ~— 
and Wehrner von Braun. 
Q That's what I have heard. Others have told me that, tooT" 
A ^ Anybody who would suggest that von Braun was forced into 
doing anything just aian'r Know von Braun very well, because that 
man was in contr°l 4'Un*nfcolliqTElb]VInk, eteSj-ihy. 
Q What was the big rush in .making him" ^ going public w/th 
the word of his reassignment, if you will, with him still away? 
A (Uni ' 
Q — begun to leak out or there was a feajr that it would leak 

:ning 
^Tr; V- can't remember the details of wllat was happening in 

the news and all that, and I don't low — 
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ecair 

-V/n 

-it v>ac not 

~~̂ ¥ 

Rimnnspri t-n haiyg announced until he got 
vacation and then he was going to go to 

—i*- leaked out, I 
headquarters 

don't know. But you 
It got out from some can't keep any secrets 

of the underlings. And it messed up the plan, because it was not 
going to be announced that way. It was qQjpg,±p be announced 
jointly^by Tom Paine and Dr. von -Brauiwtogether. 
) I coo, T quag? it l nnk? -a—LLttXa—awoiaioiowo. 

There 
-ft 
A 

i <n~ 

4 
was nothing CTspfclous about it, B6CaUfee~lt had been 

talked about â long time. He ito'lcf me "— he confided in me — in j\t£ ( told me — he nnnfirtpH in mo — in ./us 
lat his only reluctance €cTdo €Rat was because of his 

Terman * 
"That was"' what^I was going to ask. 

•Succ-juLmt 

>C w J. wcao ywj-iiy lu ctfcjJS. • 
one of his conditions was that Eberhar^ 
jor a couple of years. ——— 
A Right. That 
Q And he ̂ figured that would provide some security 
A Rl^ht."" 
-2 (TTninfi-11 igilalii.) 

I am sure he saw to it or 
him for at least 

liM 
t&.dJ' 

A They knew that Eberhardf^Bte^oing to^take care of^ __ 
•Dr. von Diuun. They didn't have the respect for him like they 
did Dr. von Braun .AHewas just one of the guys to them. 

jAtAr* happened to be Ji^a^/wnen^Unintolliijib^^,0at everybody thought 
they worked for.von Braun, you know, and he created that 

4 

nor.vontsi 
organization^ Affitô |]fwould never work for anybody except von 
Braun. He was the only guy that could make that type of a TPQ 
massive organization work. He had^people reporting to him, but 
he did that so that they could all keep their.importance£W 
whatever i • 'JatUite of 
Q Somebody has told me the way that Herman Weidner got 
selected to be a kind of a buffer or go between — well, not 
really a "buffer," that's not right — or a conduit to von Braun 
was at one point he did determine that he just had too many 
people and that you let his chief and other senior lieutenants 
pick (Unintelligible). He then joked about it wouldn't be 

A They were goin^^o combine all the engineering elements at 
the center, all the ̂laboratories and the eifc^st^ahd all that-and 
put them under one director^ They were going to put all the 
program management sunder another guy,and all that. The real 
important part wouj/d be the director of -clano ani'1» <Crj/»'Mc.  ̂ * 
fUninfcolliyiLilL.^ because that's where all the * j? 

That's where almost all the engineers.-- thatt<>»Jy. 

\ I 

"W vr̂ . 

'e. 
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f\ was the bread and butter and the glory of Marshall. 
Q Did you get any feel for something else that I have been 

® told by other people, that Mrs. von Braun talked Dr. von Braun 
into the decision in that while he may have had reluctance to go 
into Washington for reasons of leaving his team unprotected — 
then secondly, there were several people that said he was warned 
that he would be eaten alive in Washington. -"fiLm. Up 
A No way. Nnhndu nunr- wni11 i^n mf rt^-11 i--r rc+« 
Q i wouldn't have felt (Unintelligible) director apparently 

Vj x ^aS ^-'•inos^: autonomy, complete, or absolute autonomy, obviously to 
•.T T^>0int' bUt UP there he w°uld be a rather (Unintelligible 
1 ' * / (Unintelligible^ and you have to remember who he was: He 

Dr. Wehrner von Braun^capable of going to-a granii(xAjkCUsy /uu^ks 
infractor, making boucoups of money.^^At that time, they didn't-v 

rhare mag (Una ntmlligi hliigfr. like they do now. It was an 
open—door policy. You could go from government to private 
industry,back to government. Now you have to be out for five 
years before you can go back. Anything that had to do with a 
rnntractor—m—tho way of awarding a contract or—o"aluating a 

:\A 

proponent (Unintelligible) money, awarrlg fmos,—antl nil tilmL; nULl 
ean't work for thnm for f i UP ynnrg You didn't have that ©Ct/-
restriction back then. You could walk right M A P* g-*"tr 
work and,walk right into the CEO's office across the street at 
Grumman or whoever"?" 
Q Which he wound up doing with Fairchild. 
A Right. That's right. He was in high demand. 
Q What I was about to address, and it may not have been 
significant at all, is that Mrs, von Braun did not ever develop 
any great fondness for small towns7 She had grown up 
(Unintelligible) 
A Right. 
Q She was eager to go. 
A Yes. 
Q And she really thought she would have greater anonymity up 
there to be a more private person rather than somebody — a big 
fish in a little pond. 
A She was excited about it because of the availability of the 

tflS cane&lrts &M all thatT Th nit Trir^" arts ana cne museums'and the concerts and all that, ghat 
^j£u$_|j*I~gon^~tnin3c~^Ea^*^n^ymity was a factor'there 
Q "A numcer of people nave told me — and they are no 
anti-semites either, nor am I — that (TTni ntnlliijibmr̂ Jew'ish 
tL a llltr- relished the ooDortunitv to OF»t nnt / T ~ Ti ; _ • ui 

w ^ _ 
(Unintelligible) where he had been impervious to — 
6^ He could hold his own as director, but when he got up there 
some of^the Jewis^ members of the NASA hierarchy from Silverstein 
to Low^ to I think he was the public affairs chief for a 
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fljt 10 n ll o'clockj 
T ' • • -

Mivtytr- to*rT/**Ca6£ am/ OT̂ /tose lû A 

" He dealt with Tom Paine! 
long time — Icnmrarsationt 
A C"He didn't d6al with them 
^TJbintolligiblo) • 2c-y**si 

® */(.Toin Paine left in a disagreement/with Nixon over policy. 
A yon Braun came up withflwpian, a long-range plan r Tom * 
^aine was excited abou£*T£ and "he "waT'all for.'it. X? t*>*S #>C gr******' 

- Hp gnf nn Ni vein ' r Jji i 1 (TTni nliolligiblo) . Et ^ •? 
tal-iOwied Lhc (UiiinLijlliqlLi^e> twelvefourteen,bi,],]}jnn rjrvn , 

They met with Nixon. 
TT was a late night 

for 3o many years^and all thaF^jreu" 
1 wag t^pt there"? 1 didn't_go to that one. xu w 
meetingt\Ln the White House„"\fiind (Mn i ntml .1 ig,i blu,) 

Paine and von Braun wenft: to 7!T? " ' 
A * Veas, C Paine ana von 5rau_n. Von Braun did all the 
presentation. Anyway, Nixon didn't pay much attention to the 

rL^Sl..-'Ldr/t snow much interest in the plan. He just looked 
tne puaget numbers and said it was ridiculous. He said, "You 

' \j jcan_forget__about_that-t_^ "Whatever you can do 
_ for five and a half billion, that's it."^-S 

't i iirt,iU1-* 
half billion. 
•nnnvprqationl Tnfiit'nri n 1 > 

'it A** "disagreement. f'~but it "S^TS in^ >̂ ^̂ •fê TTTiTTTl iTT'i" LLjjjSf 
gblitical_ly^not acceptable. .(Unintelligible)^ 

•eally what I mednt. that thev were rebuffed. c**<s . 

It might be about what we have now 
ended the meeting with NlxonT You co"uld~call"it a YY 7̂r- c*< 

"""*"̂ 1 <n**V— - 9 
So that 

That's 
A .That's right, rebuffed, wn 
afterward^ Tom Paine called 
andLJS* toldTTim~of fiTs decTsTon 
He said, "I have no interest in . 
are going to tfo^4»J am going to 
, i. • • - and j back to private industr 
that's when heTent w ~ Fairchild 

whaL I made 

meeting sometime > 
Braun and met with himaaain. j 
- go back to General Electric. 

if that's ajl wŝ .<ll 
general Electric. • 
do the same." 7 So jftf 

intended to retire;,, 
someday T wnT77<?*"^Ve to go with 

NASA, 
He/ftoldme, 
I always knew that 

5ecause_JL have never made any . 
he had a i nt nf hi vfc arA 

id.V*-

antractor to make some 

peb*e at e-. 
contractor where 

H e  s a i d , I  needy6 jood fi) 

ioney\ in my entire career* 
±-L' * 

me .money, 
OTnasa ' 

hat and children fee 
e years to work with ?T 

z--.--._- ^ can mal^e some TSTcfyPtrCTTS' and get out of debt 
and save up some money fpreretirement." -
0 That J s what rtn*- £,,A +-k~ way with his illness and T That's what he 
death. lu's 
A He enjoyed— he 

the hard 
yvwy 

forward to working with a contractor^? 

I 

for about five years £o get out of dept and save money for his 
(Uninted/Ligible) He also said (Unintelligible YT 

don't know anybody e^se out there (Unintelligible) . When thev 
r̂ dn'̂ Wâ k̂ ĝ-jrave and there waja&niaA.on Both parts wh 
they thought that he was ramrodded anc 
force him out, of NA<A! That w? 

al nnlfrytt) p^rts^when 
all that, ̂ ĝ ĵ nVt 
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•f^f k* Cô cl/s <̂ *-4-- 1A: \XH4 $Juffy*krM*g ô .f̂ ti>i. p*>*t) U>X*k -fjuuf 
''You'ftre not going to^getgy any money , IS? you'jtre not _going Oxud*-
"to get J^aaaga grandiose schema?. ***' kU*+B 
Q Theylhad the plan which ̂ ould be taken off the shelf at any f'r^f 
time. x-\Aut Try':. 
A Right. That's right. 
Q I am sure it included our visiting the moon, the Mars a*. -tiu\ *1 
mission -

Q --"nc. space - —s ^ 
^ «BMn?_Jiad_tf_another earth orbi t 
sjaace^jitation, but it also had a space station out in the neutral ^Asa . 
part between the earth and the moon where it would just stay ***>*«-/«• 
there, jrhere were a lot of elements^ *You know, I didn't really ̂ 4- 4j^/ 
have time to go into ail tft£ 'BSYails of it. I really didn't have * 
time to study or look at those, but I was just was running ragged 
all the time trying tojcoordinate him and keep him going and all 
that. ttFiiinL*»llltJ "tlUj^Ke was not railroaded or ramrodded, 
because there was nobody in headquarters that had enough A/ftfetr* 
intellect to ever *#tyfc Wehrner von Braun" . He wai Too smart for sfv ' 

°f  ̂-fuZ » fin. A*j* . 
X r» o v«/Q /TTk. -i v\+-/\l 1 4 U1 \ r.fl— t-» _ J t _ />x. « 

# -'i' »wr<r>f »v f — 4 »- •vrm —— r » ^ " *  •  

I heard (Unintelligible) When Paine left — or maybe while 
he was still there — a number of people tried to shortstop 
requests for von Braun to speak. They might come into public 
affairs and (Unintelligible). And I am sure he got many more 
that he could fill. 
A Yes. 
Q Other people would decide what (Unintelligible). 
A Right. 
Q They finally had a decree that (Unintelligible) 
A I can't comment, because I wasn't — 
Q You weren't there. 
A Yes. 
Q But it was that kind of thing that they tried to keep some 
of those speech request away from him. 
A Yes, sir. 
Q I see. 
A So, I am sure people wrote in all the time. He would go 
through that mail at home and everything. He would bring things 
into work and go through them. 
Q They could have easily circumvented. 
A Right. (Unintelligible) He was at home. It was not like he 
maintained a lot of undercover and all that. 
Q Did he maintain some contact with you after he went to 
Washington? 
A No. 
Q I guess he was caught up — 
A Yes. Right. No, we never small talked and he never called 
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me and I never called/him. AWhen he would come back to 
Huntsville, I would and see him. Every time he came to 
Huntsville, I saw him,for whatever the deal was. I was always 
glad to see him and he was glad to see me. I didn't feel like I 
should impose myself on him. After all, I was im 1 li lowly 
«(TTninte>-liigi.blc) r 
Q fX) When you are the personal assistant to somebody — 
A y#ik.You can 1 (Unintelligibly C.OM. CL i&t o-f i/hn . 
Q Especially when it was you who went back and breezed by the 
(Unintelligible). 
A I was always the one who was approachable. They would come 
to me on anything and everything. 
Q And how he felt about certain things? 
A Oh, yes. _____ 
Q It was up to you?/(Uiiin Lull lyibli^ 
A Discretion was a/big Part of it, because he always 
maintained the highdtafaa>£^TKere were people who didn't know 

get involved in things like our president has today, von Braun 
loved jokes.He loved to hear good jokes and he loved to tell" 
good iokes. bui ne never — not of a sexual nature and all that. 
He was above"aii that. A lot of people didn't understand that. 
A lot of contractors would approach me about women and 
all that aS • «—\r J 7" 
\5~TTJT^ve heard a little about that. -m fl** _ 
A-*- AJfe^SfiSreal straight on that. He didn't do tho*e AWj V^fS | 
(•TTnintclligiLlL). (lnunrtihln) - W /UlLHmi 

terviewed you and you were the first of Buj6 X'// 
^-*-na-*--'-s^s' other than asking you or talking with you "tliUj Voty 

and finding out that you didn't want that job — or you certainly C-o^J^ 
didn't apply for it — your answer was probably something that he dbuS/ 
wanted to hear. Did he ask you anything else that was designed 
to be (Unintelligible) of your personality or your values or 'Wn 
anything like that? Do you recall? U X 
A j - 1 recall that he asked me_if_I drankOf course. that^paa 
md^backj.t Inaudible), and^I didn't know what h*> uas fPaHn? ,  —  •  —  — — i  

said, "Well, i /fljllliave a drink socially. I can take 
it oryleave it, but I doTf't have any -fT—>530 S3 -i SZ I like to 
nri nif snnallu " "Tr*o Tl1 VcT ^ i ̂  n -r 1."-'.. *•. -• • ^ "I ne fer dr>nfk socially." "He jusF'said^ 

^^ouidn't have a drinkT" Sr>T~f /pihrir f-hat 
y Any other questions like/ t^hat? 
A Well.^horo ̂ ai^sthe time/Wo ware 
shock. **r 
Q Did he want to know/if /fyou went 

a man who 
vthe ri< answer. 

X" kx* W 
(I/iyudibl\.) such a state of 

you were an Eagle scou 
A No. He was more/con 
careerT He 

church rebularly or if 

zW 
o-f-

y<H< 
c+uU 

t . ?rned about What I had inXmind as « 
was concerned/that I was gfrinq to be a dedicated 

ibjec^s. u 
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"vO-f //&*. ̂  . 
person to NASAa that was important to him, and that I was 
l'lght miwA fpr space exploration, launch vehicle development, and . 
"all that. That was going to be a big part of wM^livos and/*Mi JLLLQ. 4 
cemathing that I wanted to-do anfr be involved in for an entire 

those type things, but otherwise T*r*> career. He was concerned about those type things, but otherwise 
he didn't want to waste his time for a-couple of years.. He was 
SjroomTng""m"e ~F6r~ a~""career in aerospace 
Q He saw this as an opportunity — h£f wanted to make sure 
that someone could take the delegated responsibility down the 
line. 

I A Right. He wanted to make sure that I would try to take 
^ radvantage of these opportunities. I probably didn't, but — 

Q While you are thinking, either Jim Daniels or Frank Williams 
that told me about a flight once on a NASA plane with Fletcher — 
the administrator. j 
A James Fletcher. / t* 
Q He came from the University of Utah and was a practicing JP ^ 
Mormon. There was a steward aboard the plane, and Dr. von Braun ft <V* 
and Jim Daniels ordered a drink, bourbon and something. Fletcher ifcfV 
said, "I will have milk." They brought it to them. Von Braun, 
in a kind of teasing way, said, "Jim, you are having milk there \ 
and we are enjoying these fine mixed drinks; it's too bad your 
religion doesn't allow you to drink." Fletcher thought about 
that for a moment and said, "Wehrner, it's too bad your religionJy ^ 
doesn't allow you to have more than one wife." Fletcher was aj, 1 
teetotaler. _ rUs is 

f̂ii 

;eetotaler. 
A H e .  He loved to fly any kind of 

rircraTf^^Te" couldn'ttor wouldn^bToperate a simple thing like a ~ 
T7nr thi ngn Trurtrrif ni him You hoard the old joke about 

arse. (Inaudible )•" 
ose things"would frustrate him, and he would tear up more .VCRs 

on. Tfe^jfovTTcnSeat on it and throw 
lt̂ on^J^^^loor^ Then vou'^UaJB^have" 'bo go get the thing 
rejDaired̂  ̂ "™" i 
Q That fits .n with a story that his barber here\in Huntsville 
told me. He cu: his hair for 12 years. He told me 
the daughters coming in with a metal (Unintelligible 
managed to get this intricate battery out. Dr. von 
life of him could not get that back in there. Then 
daughters came tgpd said, "Give it to me." She imme 

•N 

Y 

about one of 
), and he had 
Braun for the 
one of the 

cj^ately got it 
in there. 
A We were up for one of the — he never missed a launch, by 
the way, and never missed a landing. I think he always — when 
say he never missed it, he watched it on TV or something if he 
wasn't going to be there. We were in his office and he called 
several of in. He had a TV 
the Apollo"landings, spTashdowni 

in his office^ Tt was one of 
We were all sitting in there, 
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about. J.2— or 
capsule coming 

LI"#*' 

5?-? 

it 
and walked""ov 

watching this parachute cpening-and this 
The TV reception got i-" be terrihle^ jU+Ut*{ 
JcTnd of a sepia color " 1"1-- J 

flipped it down 
to the TV and fo 

there was a blue 
turned the colo_r 

zv and the water 

just casually got 
oor and" " 

it. It^same in and 

/-2Ei-
( "Oh, 

von Braun said AiH'?hnfc did you do? 
my God, I'm in trouble. * " 
per you want me to put 

What 
cfood color 
did vou do?" I said, 

So* 

. J I just adiusted the color on the 
it back the way it was?" He said,""11: 

didn't know you could do that. 
years/" MBOfgCOTm Not a person 

It's bee. ^p^that Way~~£or five 
room In all rhatr-tXine 

"ever suggested or got up to change tjie color. They just all 
there. He could be very animatedthat German accent. * 

e just took me aback, because I thought I had upset him. 
[e thought you had really worked some magic. 

A Yes. It was beyond — I had just adjusted the color with 
the knob right here. 
Q Do you have any recollections on the way he conducted 

f meetings with his staff neon!e|or lab directors or whatever? 
A Everybody got the chance to have their sav. everybody 
woulcTjriever make a decision until everybody had their say, 

when they would all be done talking. 

He 
a" 

ask then, ___ 
\l questions. He would penetrate to get a better understanding, but 
^ "he wouldn't disagree with them and he would never say, well," 

that's ridiculous and this and that; you know, like Bill Lucas 
would have done. He would never do that. Hewouldn^tmakeJ^ 
decision until he had gone around the table and everybody had 
their^sa^j^ Then h^_Moald—£taild__ug_an_d he would_go back_and"~ 
address each and every one of those guys. Then he*"would ask them 
about what they said about this and thatT* but then he would say, 
"But, we are not going to do that." Then he would make the 
decision. It was not a consensus; he_made~the"decision, but 

body had their say. Then they understood his__ ^veryt 
why h« why he would disagree andvwasn't going to do this or that. 
of time*s"T?e"TnTgnFno^^ayanythTnganrThey never knew — you 

lot 

"know, he just took all that in and they didn't know what he was 
"lot of people would think tnev knew what 

He 
going to ao witn it 
he was aoina to do wj-i -but he was very unpredictable, 
was__adLway_s full of surprises. He always went for the full 
enchilada, like I said. He never thought small; he always 
thought, big on everything. So many'people arouncT'him "never could 
think big like he could, so "tnev couian"c conceive thai he wduld" 

. do this or that becaugg-he w&5 feuch a big thinker and they"~were 
small thinkers. 

r-C Did he have a temper? 
Yes. Yes. IW^JI IUJL 

the more likelihood/he would lose his temper. 

ose it from limp In t^me? 
The smaller the group, /jga 
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to meetings, he wnnld ^i,weyfr sizft^pjUie. audience. He would look 
in that room/ and he would not speak or anything until he knew 
who everybocfy was. He would give roe little bits of paper and he 

(Inaudible) He would want roe to go find Ujhttk 
out who *hq^ rpnnlrnr uinrii- jfe knew everybody in that room before 
he would speajc. He would size up the audience every time he came 
Tnto a room for a meeting. I am talking about when_he was away 
'from Marshall. He knew the people at Marshall.jfjfleifaftAaL-go up 
jbo^headquarters or 
Q™""" " when there were not necessarily introductions — 
A Yes. You know, All the big wheels already knew each other, 
but he didn't know if there were some staff assistants or some 

He wanted to know senator from some committee or this or jthat. 
who those people iti 

d? Shrewc 3 

% 
h<r+*. 
-Hu 

f 
3"y 
£***• rKint?" Yes. <^THey may not be really important, but.he wanted to 

know who he was. ..speaking to • (Inaudible) ̂ go he jtis MI, * 
Backing up to the beginning, how long had you been at 

Marshall when he selected you? 
A I came to work for Marshall 
me ih '69, 

in June of '63, apd he selected 
so about six years, and thev were -just right after The 

.Apollo landing. Ann Tin n. jt was probably around August or so 
when I went to work for him. I had been there about six" years. 

You retired from Marshall? 
Two years aao in January of '97. 
what was your position then? 
I was a project manager. 
Was that" in the test facility? 
Oh, no. That was in the mathematician program at Marshall. 

Again, the laboratory provided the technical support, but the 
centers are not the same anymore. They are not organized like 
they were back then. Each lab director used to be a team with 
his own little system and all that. It's not that way any more. 

. . .  Ol**? ° 
(Conversation) w I , s 
Q Questions keep occurring to me. Congressman Tiger<^ Teague's 
name keeps popping up, and I am sure h£" was 'Tn aTcritical 
position a chair of appropriations or whatever — 
A Yes, he was. 
Q Do you remember any specific stories? I understand he and 
Dr. von Braun were pretty tight and would go fishing and hunting. 

Yes. Right. ^ 
Was that mostly fishing or — V-C* 
I don't know about the fishing and huntin g k n o w  t h e y  

reiN" were really tight.—d real close, because whenever he would cope 
into the room up ̂ here to one of those committee hearings or 
whatever, Tigerij would jump up and he would go greet Wehrner and 

23 



r (CfivJ'dO IT? 

pflZnc^ 

give him a big bear hug. Thev would carry on and all that, you 
Tcnow, arid~"dropped all the .formalities.. 
Q They made no pretense about it? 
A No, they were greatsfriends. 
Q There must have been relationships like that that certain 
other people envied and were jealous about. 
A Yes. 
Q I am sure there was some genuine friendship there between 
them. dUo 
A Oh, yes.a >(Uwinfcellioribile) very important, that he — 
_that friendship. Like I say, von Braun was a master politician; 
although, he didn't"try to appeal to the masses. JHe always Lj j 
thought that his time being as limited as it was that he should 
spend time where it really counted .andAalTlOhg people who cou.fccU^ <<*5 
twflwowoe poepla 

— 

L 

c 

^ Tn nl-hftr wnr-dg . Jvp wast r^nt «nir.rf *-<-> fry to /! 
influence the masses; he was going to trv to influence the people 
in power and then let them do whatever thev had to to influence ' >» . 
the masses. 
tS"l Maybe very early on in the Collier's articles that he did 
d Disney films and everything like that, he was trying to fire 

the imagination of the mass public. — 
k 7es. out 1 tnlnxneiearnea along the way somewhere that you 
get more bang_£or__tne buck if you go to the important, people, arid 
that_waewhere_Jie_sj3ej[rt__hiji^^p. (7C?) (. 
Q Talk about a man for all seasons. ̂ ̂ippai^intlj , hit was in a 
class by himself0»a a toohnaeal poguui'i, too. 
A *es. ^ 
Q I have gotten a number of! stories where he just zeroed in on 
some technical minutia — 1* 
A That's right. ^ 

— that fixed the problem, engineering trick or something. 
It^s amazing how he could do that,and peopTe_who would be 

Iking'to Aim abouF things were so in awe. Thev would be scared 
fco deatn and all that. Ihave^seen^geoplev^iocouldn^t even 
speak they would be so nervous and scareato be in_hi& 

put "them at ease . He "would get~up and ao and put 
_ i  i _ _  i T  x_ r . _ - .  ii _ . i  his hand on their shoulder and start talking to them one-on-one. 

"Let me see if I understand this, preterm. If I'Ttav^gbf this" 
right, what yo_u__are telling me is that —" andthenheijjould 
start talkin 

ScL 

and get them going again. He was giving "them a 
iney wouT3"Toclc"T!I^&n_Rjjm. Other people out jump start 

there would sa •bha'b guy out of here." and they would chop 
Them down""an? 
He Wouldn't dc 

jet them out of there; you know, but not von Braun. 

Q YOU know 
his humanity. 
A He had a 

that to anybody. 
there are stories like that about his warmth and 

lot of humanity. 

24 

eruJt 
Cpv. 



3-FF 

Q I think they give lie to some of thes^historical 
revisionists who are coming up with these stories about his — 
clulflhg the Third Reich era and that he was heartless over slave 
labor and all that^ 
A I just couldn't believe that. He wasAa realist. He knew 

couldn't control^ an d h e  knew  what he could cc 
what influence he could have andjwhat influence he coulfliilfc_Jl33Eg> 
and he knew what would get him in jail and what wouldn't get him 
in jail. From that aspect, you know — 

to Q And what would allow him to continue his work or 
sacrifice his life over nothing. 
A Right. 
(Conversation about historical revisionists) 
Q But his human qualities ju^t seem to kind of give lie — 
A Yesyou don't change like that. You don't develop those 
human qualities TlV"nT Vn11 nin" ^lir"1" ^FY"1 "1 *"D a 

and have a reformation II ike that. It was genuine. 
There's no doubt in mv mind. He genuinely liked people. He was 
a great one-on-one person; he would do anything ne could to help 
you out«one-on-one, but didn't necessarily think and scheme out 
and go help a hundred thousand people or ten million people or 
anything like that. , .. , . 
'q Unless it was through some educational #und hvfa \fJLLû ar 
A Right. (Conversation) * 
Q Wĵ re there any incidents with politicians or public office 
holders, other than what you might have mentioned, that come to 
mind? 
A No, nothing that I can recall. Like I said, my tenure was 
so short with him, and a lot of the times I was not in his 
presence all the time, because I am off in the wings doing this 
and doing that. While he's in there with some politician, I am 
off doing this and doing that, trying to do my thing, you know. 
Q (Conversation — Simington, eight engine story) 
A Of course, he could have come up with it off the top of his 
head, too. You didn't have to do much priming on him. 
Q 
A 
Q 
A 

It was all there. 
Yes. 
And he sort of had total 
Thaî jSiErr 

\LSJM 

He was a 
to every WTT'I those "people ~sai"dXv£ e thev were having their savr 

Ho wafc/jisharp listener, yfe'gfcwwwfcfl 
/gtui»a knowledge, frnnwloflqe on"a lot of things. You would always 
f  j j  r  i  j .  

He was real good at that. 

ally 

have nis undivided attention. If you spoke to hTm, he heard what 
you said. He listened and lie reme^fr^yfifl. 

just an amazing personality in so many respects. 
A Right. (There is skip in the tape here, 
is the same interview.) 

but I believe this 
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Q Obviously, Dr. von Braun was very good at reading people and 
character assessment, I guess, of people, Tom, are there any 
specifics that you might recall? Was he a pretty infallible 
judge of people? 
A Yes, he was pretty right on about everybody, pretty right on 
about them. 
Q Just his life's experiences, I guess, helped. 
A When I think back to his assessment on some people, he was 
pretty right on on every one of them. I don't think anybody 
fooled him. 
Q Did you ever know — (End of interview) 
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and Tom Shane] 
decided 

fV' 

was relatively junior at that time. Werner 
e~~needed a "horse holder," so we brought Tom into 

U 

the office, and Tom really did go around with Werner and carry 
his bags and miscellaneous stuff.When Werner moved to 
Washington, Werner had this Mercedes Benz convertible, one of 
those fancy two-seaters. Tom got the job of driving to 
Washington. They loaded it down and Werner and his wife flew and 
Tom Shanen got to drive that fancy little car up there, He might 
have some things to say, too, about his relationship for about a 
y0gj- qj- go with Werner in that regard. This was about the year 

\ before Werner went up there. But he helped carry his furniture 
j up there and drove that car. He had some fairly intimate 
\ relationships with Werner in a short period of time. 
fwf-Cbn'v^gBQtion) " ~ 

This is kind of a funny story. This was related to me by 
Frank Williams, who was present when this story happened. While 
we were in Washington, Werner had some vacation time and he was 
going to go out into the Chesapeake Bay. They were going to go 
fishing in Chesapeake Bay and he rented some kind of a boat. For 
some reason — I have always regretted it — I had some 
commitment and I didn't take this trip with him. They went out 
there fishing with Frank Williams and a couple of other people 
from the office, the planning office. They dropped anchor and 
Werner forgot to tie the end of the anchor and the anchor and the 

« "rope just went. (Conversation about Frank Williams, living in 
1 Slidell.) 

Von Braun was always asked to speak a lot, and when he was 
here, he had a few others that would make a speech for him when 
he couldn't do one. When he was in Washington, particularly in 

/ the Tom Paine era, Tom Paine put out an edict of who could and 
who couldn't speak for von Braun. I thought that was a kind of 
interesting list. Astronauts could speak for von Braun or 
Leonard Jastrow. director ot Goddard Institute of Space Science, 
could speak. He was a high-level, scientific guy. I was always 
very impressed with him when I heard him speak. (Conversation) 

One other thing which was rather frustrating to him, very 
f frustrating to"him, when he was the center director, he could go 

out and say anything he wanted to say. After all, that is the 
role of the center to propose things. But when he got to 
Washington, they put constraints on him. He had to speak the 
garty^TTnel He was the number three man in the agency in those 
ays, ancT they put constraints on him. The administrators staff 

/ wanted to review his speeches. Well, Werner never liked to 
repeat a speech verbatim. He liked to ad lib a lot. So this 
made his speeches more stilted, too, when he was up there. It 

1 was a shame to see that. 
Q Getting back to this authorized substitute speaker list, was 

V 
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